LICENSING COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 12 October 2022

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held at Committee Room - 2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Wednesday, 12 October 2022 at 1.45 pm

Present

Members:

James Tumbridge (Chairman) Sophie Anne Fernandes (Deputy Chairman) Brendan Barns Deputy Peter Dunphy Deputy John Fletcher Deputy Marianne Fredericks Deputy Graham Packham

In Attendance

Officers:

Unicers.	
Chloe Ainsworth	 Town Clerk's Department
Andrew Buckingham	 Town Clerk's Department
Peter Davenport	 Environment Department
Caroline Hay	- City of London Police
Frank Marchione	 Comptroller & City Solicitor's Department
Aggie Minas	 Environment Department
Rachel Pye	- Environment Department
-	-

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Mary Durcan, Anthony Fitzpatrick, Deputy Shravan Joshi and David Sales.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were no declarations.

3. PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the public minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2022 be approved as a correct record.

4. ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE COMMITTEE'S TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk which presented the Committee's terms of reference for review. Members were also asked to consider whether the current meeting frequency was appropriate.

Members confirmed they had no changes to the terms of reference or frequency of meetings.

RESOLVED, that –

- the terms of reference of the Licensing Committee be approved without amendment for submission to the Court in April 2023;
- no change be required to the frequency of the Licensing Committee's meetings.

5. MINUTES OF LICENSING (HEARING) SUB COMMITTEES

5.1 Art of Dough, 15 July 2022

The Committee received the public minutes of the licensing hearing in respect of the premises Art of Dough, 16 Eldon Street, London, EC2M 7LD.

RESOLVED – That the minutes be noted.

5.2 **The Pavilion Bar and Restaurant Ltd, 18 July 2022**

The Committee received the public minutes of the licensing hearing in respect of the premises the Pavilion Bar and Restaurant, 200 Aldersgate Street (Unit 3 South), London, EC1A 4HD.

RESOLVED – That the minutes be noted.

5.3 Art of Dough, 28 July 2022

The Committee received the public minutes of the licensing hearing in respect of the premises Art of Dough, 16 Eldon Street, London, EC2M 7LD.

Members were informed that the event held at the Art of Dough occurred without incident.

RESOLVED – That the minutes be noted.

6. **APPEALS AGAINST LICENSING (HEARING) SUB COMMITTEE DECISIONS** The Comptroller & City Solicitor advised the Committee that there were currently no appeals.

7. DELEGATED DECISIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ENVIRONMENT PERTAINING TO PREMISES' LICENCES

The Committee received a report of the Executive Director Environment detailing the premises licences, and variations to premises licences, granted under the Licensing Act 2003 and administered by the Licensing Service from 1 July 2022 to 30 September 2022.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

8. CRIMES AT LICENSED PREMISES

The Committee received a report of the City of London Police providing an update on crimes committed linked to licensed premises between July and September 2022.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

9. OPERATION RE-FRAME UPDATE

The Committee received a report of the City of London Police providing an update on Operation Reframe. The event took place on 30 September 2022 and the theme was spiking.

Members were informed that the next Operation Reframe would be taking place on 3 December 2022 and that the theme was bystanders.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

10. CODE OF GOOD PRACTICE FOR LICENSED PREMISES

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director Environment including an updated Code of Good Practice for approval.

The Chair proposed the following amendments to the Code of Good Practice:

- Page 65 To include more detail about how the City of London can support licensed premises in paragraph 1.5.
- Page 82 To clarify the City Corporation's expectations around public safety.
- Page 94 To include more information regarding protecting children from harm. It was noted that it was important that this area of the Code of Good Practice reflected that there were some licensed premises in which would be appropriate for children to attend.

RESOLVED, that –

- Authority be delegated to the Chair and the Deputy Chair to make further amendments to the Code of Good Practice in conjunction with Officers;
- Approval of the updated Code of Good Practice be sought from the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chair and Deputy Chair, under delegated authority.

11. SUPPORTING THE HOSPITALITY SECTOR: CITY EVENTS

The Committee received a verbal update from the Executive Director Environment regarding hospitality support that the City Corporation could provide for its licensed premises. The update was in response to the Chair of the Licensing Committee requesting that Officers explore actions to support City trade.

Members were informed that despite the City's busy events schedule, local venues had not been open to take advantage of the increased footfall. Feedback from venues indicates that they are not uniformly informed about

events occurring in the City. It was noted that the City could improve its communication of events to local venues so that they could consider the resulting potential increase in footfall to the City when making decisions about their opening times.

It was noted this links directly to the Destination City Strategy and the ambition to increase visitor numbers and visitor spend.

Members were informed of the following actions:

- The Highways and Events teams will share a monthly events list by email to available hospitality contacts (of both licensed and non-licensed premises)
- Officers will obtain updated contact information from premises at the annual Licensing Forum on 1 November and obtain their interest in receiving City events information.
- Officers are currently assessing the interest in the City Corporation conducting a monthly online session providing information about City events.
- The City Corporation has a Licensing Officer in place who is a specialist in facilitating the licensing of events. The Officer sits on key events groups.
- The Golden Key event has developed an <u>interactive eat, drink and after</u> <u>parties map</u> sharing hospitality offers with visitors.
- Officers are extending existing events communications delivered by the City or events organisers to include communication streams on the footfall opportunity to local venues and venues around our transport hubs.

In response to a query from a Member, the Committee was informed that the relevant teams across departments had been collaborating to avoid working in silos and that Officers would consider further ways to ensure a joined up approach.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

12. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

The following items of urgent business were raised –

- The Chair informed the Committee that funding had been made available to trial lifts and sanitation devices in the Autumn.
- The Chair noted that this would be Peter Davenport's final Licensing Committee as the Licensing Manager and thanked him for his work with the Licensing Committee. The Chair also welcomed the new Licensing Manager.

14. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

15. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2022 be approved as a correct record.

16. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was no other business.

The meeting ended at 2.11 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Chloe Ainsworth Chloe.Ainsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk